
          

 

 

PRINCIPAL ONE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

DUVAL COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 1, 2023 
6:00 P.M. 

 

 

 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.principalonecdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Clubhouse of IL Villagio 

9745 Touchton Road 
Jacksonville, Florida 32246 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
March 1, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
 
  
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. November 16, 2022 Regular Board Meeting…………………………………………………..Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget…...Page 5 

I. Administrative Matters 

J. Board Member Comments 

K. Adjourn 



���������������	
 ������������������������������	����������

������������ ���������������������! ���

"#$%&''()&*+$�,*-#%&$./0123456�27�89:;3<7=2115�>921?�@5:<A6�B�>/=91�C</7D?�<7�E5FD5G05A�HHI�HJHHKLMNOPLQ>/=91�C</7D?IRLOPMS�TSUOV23:511975</3�./012:�W<D2:53.@XWCX.YZ�[W\C[VV]WX̂_>\̀\Z[.V\Ŵ �>XÊ@XĈaXECYZ�_\Y@�HJHHbHJHc�@\d]ZY@�V\\̂XWdECe\>]Z\W[̂XC\�XE�e\@\f_�dX̀\W�D49D�D45�f<9A6�<g�E/F5A=23<A3�<g�D45�.A27:2F91�[75�C<GG/72D?�>5=51<FG57D�>23DA2:D�h211�4<16@5i/19A�V55D27i3�9D�jkJJ�FlGl�m/71533�<D45Ah235�7<D56n�9D�D45�C1/04</35�<g�XZ�̀2119i2<I�opqr�̂</:4D<7�@<96I�89:;3<7=2115Ia1<A269�cHHqjI�<7�D45�g<11<h27i�69D53k[:D<05A�rI�HJHHW<=5G05A�sjI�HJHH�mtkcJ�FlGln>5:5G05A�pI�HJHH897/9A?�qI�HJHca50A/9A?�sI�HJHcV9A:4�sI�HJHcYFA21�rI�HJHcV9?�cI�HJHc8/75�pI�HJHc8/1?�rI�HJHcY/i/3D�HI�HJHcE5FD5G05A�jI�HJHc4̂5�F/AF<35�<g�D45�G55D27i3�23�D<�:<76/:D�97?�0/327533�:<G27i�05g<A5�D45�f<9A6l�V55D27i3�9A5�<F57�D<�D45�F/012:�976�h21105�:<76/:D56�27�9::<A697:5�h2D4�D45�FA<=232<73�<g�a1<A269�19hl�C<F253�<g�D45�Yi57693�g<A�97?�<g�D45�G55D27i3�G9?�05<0D92756�gA<G�D45�>23DA2:D�3�h5032D5�<A�0?�:<7D9:D27i�D45�>23DA2:D�V979i5A�9D�mrjsn�jcJBqoHH�976b<A�9D�sBtppBpcpBqoHH�FA2<AD<�D45�69D5�<g�D45�F9AD2:/19A�G55D27ilaA<G�D2G5�D<�D2G5�<75�<A�G<A5�E/F5A=23<A3�G9?�F9AD2:2F9D5�0?�D515F4<75u�D45A5g<A5I�9D�D45�1<:9D2<7�<g�D4535�G55D27i3�D45A5h211�05�9�3F59;5A�D515F4<75�FA5357D�3<�D49D�27D5A53D56�F5A3<73�:97�9DD576�D45�G55D27i3�9D�D45�90<=5�1<:9D2<7�976�05�g/11?27g<AG56�<g�D45�623:/332<73�D9;27i�F19:5�52D45A�27�F5A3<7�<A�0?�D515F4<75�:<GG/72:9D2<7l�E926�G55D27i3�G9?�05�:<7D27/56gA<G�D2G5�D<�D2G5�93�3D9D56�<7�D45�A5:<A6�D<�9�69D5I�D2G5�976�F19:5�:5AD927lXg�97?�F5A3<7�65:2653�D<�9FF591�97?�65:232<7�G965�h2D4�A53F5:D�D<�97?�G9DD5A�:<73265A56�9D�D4535�G55D27i3I�3/:4�F5A3<7h211�7556�9�A5:<A6�<g�D45�FA<:55627i3�976�3/:4�F5A3<7�G9?�7556�D<�573/A5�D49D�9�=5A09D2G�A5:<A6�<g�D45�FA<:55627i3�23G965�9D�423�<A�45A�<h7�5vF5735�976�h42:4�A5:<A6�27:1/653�D45�D53D2G<7?�976�5=2657:5�<7�h42:4�D45�9FF591�23�09356lX7�9::<A697:5�h2D4�D45�FA<=232<73�<g�D45�YG5A2:973�h2D4�>2390212D253�Y:DI�97?�F5A3<7�A5w/2A27i�3F5:291�9::<GG<69D2<73�<A�9727D5AFA5D5A�D<�F9AD2:2F9D5�9D�97?�<g�D4535�G55D27i3�34</16�:<7D9:D�D45�>23DA2:D�V979i5A�9D�mrjsn�jcJBqoHH�976b<A�D<11�gA55�9DsBtppBpcpBqoHH�9D�1593D�35=57�mpn�69?3�FA2<A�D<�D45�69D5�<g�D45�F9AD2:/19A�G55D27ilV55D27i3�G9?�05�:97:51156�gA<G�D2G5�D<�D2G5�h2D4</D�96=5AD2356�7<D2:5l.@XWCX.YZ�[W\C[VV]WX̂_>\̀\Z[.V\Ŵ �>XÊ@XĈhhhlFA27:2F91<75:66l<AiE5Fl�HH�mHHBJjHsr>n
Page 1



Page 1 of 3 
 

PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 16, 2022 
 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Jason Pierman called the November 16, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Principal 
One Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 8:33 p.m. in the Clubhouse of Il 
Villagio located at 9745 Touchton Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32246. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Pierman presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published 
in the Jacksonville Daily Record on September 22, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. CONSIDER RESIGNATIONS 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hepke, seconded by Mrs. Hepke and passed unanimously accepting the 
resignations of Mike Chevalier and Ilona Macy. 
 
D. CONSIDER APPOINTMENT OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Hepke, seconded by Mr. Hepke and unanimously passed appointing 
Victoria Shirk to the vacant Seat 1, which expires in 2026.   
 
A second motion was made by Mrs. Hepke, seconded by Mr. Hepke and unanimously passed ratifying 
the actions taken by the Board prior to the establishment of a quorum.   
 
E. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE AND REVIEW BOARD MEMBER DUTIES & 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Mr. Pierman, Notary for the State of Florida, administered the Oath of Office to Ms. Shirk and explained 
the duties of a Supervisor.   
 
F. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Mr. Pierman determined that the attendance of Chairperson Michelle Hepke, Vice Chairman Brian 
Hepke and Supervisor Victoria Shirk constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the 
meeting.  
 
Also present was District Manager Jason Pierman of Special District Services, Inc. 
 
G. ELECTION  OF OFFICERS 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hepke, seconded by Ms. Shirk and unanimously passed electing the 
following slate of officers: 

Page 2



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 Chair – Michelle Hepke 
 Vice Chair – Victoria Shirk 
 Secretary/Treasurer – Jason Pierman 
 Assistant Secretaries – Brian Hepke 

 
H. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
I. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
J. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  June 1, 2022, Public Hearing &  Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Pierman presented the minutes of the June 1, 2022, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting and 
asked if there were any changes/corrections.   
   
There being none, a motion was then made by Mrs. Hepke, seconded by Mr. Hepke Macy and passed 
unanimously approving the minutes of the June 1, 2022, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting, as 
presented. 
 
K. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
L. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget 
 
Mr. Pierman presented Resolution No. 2022-04, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 
2021/2022 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 
189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Hepke, seconded by Ms. Shirk and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2022-04, as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Auditor Renewal 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Hepke, seconded by Mr. Hepke and passed unanimously approving the 
renewal of the auditor.. 
 

Page 3



Page 3 of 3 
 

 3.  Discussion Regarding Street Repairs around Storm Drains 
 
Mrs. Hepke showed pictures of a storm drains where the asphalt had eroded around the drains.  Mr. 
Pierman stated that it looked like it was a road failure and did not have anything to do with the drainage 
box, but requested that Mrs. Hepke send him the pictures so he can show them to the District’s engineer 
for review.   
 
M. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Mr. Pierman noted that the next meeting would take place in either March or April. 
 
N. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further Board Member comments. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Hepke, seconded 
by Ms. Shirk and unanimously passed adjourning the meeting at 9:03 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 4



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Principal One Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE PRINCIPAL ONE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for June 7, 2023 at   6:00 p.m. in the 
Clubhouse of IL Villagio located at 9745 Touchton Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32246, for the 
purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 1st day of March, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: PRINCIPAL ONE 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 5



      Principal One
  Community Development District

        Proposed Budget For
         Fiscal Year 2023/2024

          October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11


	Principal One Community Development District - March 1, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	November 16, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget




